Central Bedfordshire
Council
Priory House
Monks Walk
Chicksands,
Shefford SG17 5TQ
please ask for
direct line
date

This meeting
may be filmed.*

Paula Everitt
0300 300 4196
07 September 2017

NOTICE OF MEETING
SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date & Time

Monday, 18 September 2017 10.00 a.m.
Venue at

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford
Richard Carr
Chief Executive
To:
The Chairman and Members of the SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
Cllrs P Hollick (Chairman), P Downing (Vice-Chairman), Mrs A Barker, P A Duckett,
K Ferguson, Mrs S A Goodchild, Mrs D B Gurney, G Perham and A M Turner

[Named Substitutes:
R D Berry, J Chatterley, Ms A M W Graham, R W Johnstone and
M A G Versallion]
All other Members of the Council - on request
MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS
MEETING

*This meeting may be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent broadcast
online and can be viewed at
https://centralbedfordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home.
At the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting will
be filmed by the Council. The footage will be on the Council’s website for six
months. A copy of it will also be retained in accordance with the Council’s data
retention policy. The images and sound recording may be used for training
purposes within the Council.
By entering the Chamber you are deemed to have consented to being filmed by the
Council, including during any representation you might make, and to the possible
use of the images and sound recordings made by the Council for webcasting
and/or training purposes.
Phones and other equipment may also be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog
from this meeting by an individual Council member or a member of the public. No
part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves
to go into exempt session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not
under the Council’s control.

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members

2.

Minutes
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Social Care
Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 24 July 2017
and to note actions taken since that meeting.

3.

Members' Interests
To receive from Members any declarations of interest and of any political whip
in relation to any agenda item.

4.

Chairman's Announcements and Communications
To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of
communication.

5.

Petitions
To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure as set out in Part 4G of the Constitution.

6.

Questions, Statements or Deputations
To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in Part
4G of the Constitution.

7.

Call-In
To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for review
in accordance with Part 4D of the Constitution.

8.

Requested Items
To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member in
accordance with Part 4D of the Constitution.

9.

Executive Members' Update
To receive a brief verbal update from the Executive Members for
 Social Care and Housing and
 Health.

Part A: External & NHS matters
To review and scrutinise any matters relating to the planning, provision and operation
of health services in Central Bedfordshire commissioned by the NHS or external
organisations (such as the Clinical Commissioning Group).
Reports
Item
10

Subject
Introduction to the new Accountable Officer at Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (BCCG)
An introduction to Sarah Thompson, Accountable Officer, Bedfordshire
Clinical Commissioning Group.

11

Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) - Commissioning
Intentions
To receive a presentation on the BCCG’s updated Commissioning Intentions.

12

Mental Health Crisis Care
To consider and comment on the proposals for the Mental Health Crisis Care
service and the outcome of the service user engagement.

Part B: Public Health, Social Care &
Housing matters
To review and scrutinise any matters that fall within the remit of the Council’s Social
Care, Health and Housing or Public Health Directorates.
Reports
Item
13

Subject
Better Care Fund Update
To receive a verbal update on the Better Care Fund Plan 2017-19.

14

Work Programme 2017/18 and Executive Forward Plan
The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted Committee
work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan.

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
At a meeting of the SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk,
Shefford on Monday, 24 July 2017.
PRESENT
Cllr P Hollick (Chairman)
Cllr P Downing (Vice-Chairman)
Cllrs Mrs A Barker
P A Duckett
Mrs S A Goodchild

Cllrs

Apologies for Absence:

Cllrs K Ferguson
Mrs D B Gurney

Substitutes:

Cllrs R D Berry
J Chatterley

Members in Attendance:

Cllrs E Ghent
Mrs C Hegley
B J Spurr
Mrs T Stock

Officers in Attendance:

Mrs P Coker
Mr N Costin
Mrs P Everitt
Mr I Hanton
Mrs J Ogley

Others in Attendance

Mr B Jay
Mr D Simpson

G Perham
A M Turner

Deputy Executive Member for Social
Care and Housing
Executive Member for Social Care
and Housing
Executive Member for Health and
Chairman of the Health and
Wellbeing Board
Deputy Executive Member for Health
Head of Service, Partnerships - Social
Care, Health & Housing
Head of Housing Service
Scrutiny Policy Adviser
Development & Commissioning
Manager
Director of Social Care, Health and
Housing
Chief Finance Officer, BCCG
Interim Chairman Central
Bedfordshire Healthwatch

SCHH/17/15. Minutes
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meetings of the Social Care Health and
Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 15 May 2017 and 05 June
2017 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Item 2 /

Page 1

SCHHPage 2

24.07.17

SCHH/17/16. Members' Interests
Cllr Barker declared an interest as a past Ambulance Service employee.
SCHH/17/17. Chairman's Announcements and Communications
The Chairman advised the Committee on recent news and events that
included: That funding had been allocated to Bedford Hospital for a Primary Care
unit.
 Corporate Resources OSC would consider all budget and performance
information for the Council at their meeting on 27 July 2017.
 That Executive would respond to the Enquiry into the Integration of Health
and Social Care report and recommendations at their meeting on 1 August
2017.
 The BCCG had come out of legal direction under NHS England.
 That the new Accountable Officer for the BCCG, Sarah Thompson, would
attend September’s meeting to meet Committee Members.
SCHH/17/18. Petitions
None.
SCHH/17/19. Questions, Statements or Deputations
None.
SCHH/17/20. Call-In
None.
SCHH/17/21. Requested Items
The Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee had considered
the Budget pressures that related to Homelessness and requested the SCHH
OSC look into this matter. The Chairman advised this Committee had received
a report and presentation at their June meeting and were supportive of
proposals to meet demand and challenges of the new Homelessness
Reduction Act due to come into force in April 2018.
SCHH/17/22. Executive Member Update
The Executive Member for Social Care and Housing updated the Committee on
the latest news and developments that included: A Member Briefing on modern methods of construction had been well
attended and had showed a joint Council approach and understanding to
bring housing projects forward.
 The conclusion of the Children Services Ofsted Inspection, the outcome of
which was expected at the end of August 2017.
 Congratulations were extended to the staff at Abbotsbury Residential Home
that had received a ‘good’ CQC inspection.
Item 2 /

Page 2

SCHHPage 3



24.07.17

Colleagues at Silsoe Horticultural Centre had been presented with a
photograph album depicting the floral displays provided for the Queen’s visit
to Priory View.

The Executive Member for Health reported that work undertaken by Bedford
Borough Council on the current levels of fluoridation would be completed next
year. The Executive Member would bring a report to the SCHHOSC for
consideration once this piece of work has been completed.
SCHH/17/23. Empty Homes Strategy
The Head of Housing Services introduced the Draft 2017 Empty Homes
Strategy report and consultation responses. To date, the Strategy had been a
success with many empty homes brought back into occupation in an
environment of huge national housing shortage pressures. Accommodation
above shops and businesses in town centres had also been brought back into
use and this could in the future lead to signification regeneration in those areas.
The Committee supported the three objectives outlined in the report and whilst
acknowledging the lengthy procedures involved and the limited staff resources
available, Members supported an expansion to the service noting the many
benefits to be gained. The Director advised that this was a discretionary
service provided by the Council.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee
1. Supported the three objectives set out in the Empty Homes Strategy.
2. Applauded the work being done to bring further empty homes into
habitable accommodation and whilst recognising the challenges,
expects continuing robust enforcement to reduce long term empty
homes and to report back on the numbers in a year’s time.
3. Welcomed the link to town centre regeneration and would like to see
evidence of further rooms above shops and businesses being brought
into habitable accommodation.
4. Recommended that during the budget cycle the Portfolio Holder for
Social Care and Housing gives consideration to the possibility of
seeking additional resources to further this important area of work.
SCHH/17/24. The Future of The Birches Older Persons Home: Outcome of Consultation
and Recommendations
The Director introduced a report regarding the future of the Birches Older
Persons Home that included the outcome of a consultation process. Residents
had received offers of alternative accommodation including an offer at the Oak
Manor Care Home in Shefford. Officers had ensured that lessons learnt from
earlier care home re-provisions had been implemented and an enhanced
approach to ‘due diligence’ in assessing new care providers entering the local
market had been completed.
The Development & Commissioning Manager advised that consultation
feedback recognised staff at the Birches were highly valued by residents and
relatives and in previous home closures staff had transferred to work in other
areas of the Council. Support to staff would continue as required. Members
Item 2 /

Page 3

SCHHPage 4

24.07.17

were also reassured the transition of residents to their new homes would be
managed properly and sensitively
A Member raised a concern regarding GP provision for residents moving to
Oak Manor in light of which the Development and Commissioning Manager
confirmed current GP arrangements would remain in place for residents
RECOMMENDED that the Committee
1. Is satisfied that the consultation process had been thorough and had
followed the established principles set down for effective
consultation.
2. Supported the Executive recommendation for the closure of The
Birches and the relocation of residents to Oak Manor as being the best
way to provide up to date facilities based on the generally very
favourable comments from residents and relatives.
3. Welcomed the now developed protocol for assessing the suppliers of
care places in new homes.
4. Expected the Council to ensure a smooth move to Oak Manor to
safeguard the health and well being of those residents of The Birches
moving there.
SCHH/17/25. Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan
NOTED the Executive Forward Plan and approved its own Work Programme.
SCHH/17/26. Non-emergency Patient Transport
The Chairman introduced Ben Jay, Chief Finance Officer, Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (BCCG) who introduced a report regarding the NonEmergency Public Transport service that had been contracted by a consortium
of CCG’s to Private Ambulance Service (PAS) for a period of 12 months.
Significant operational issues from the start of the contract had led to a high
level of complaints from patients. The BCCG had worked with the contractor to
resolved the complicated logistical and communications issues and had also
set up a bespoke renal service in the interim.
The Committee were reassured that steps taken to improve performance to
customers and support to PAS to meet their contract obligations were in place.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee
1. Recognised the work being undertaken to address the concerns
expressed by patients and that it expected a reliable, high quality
service which includes good communication with patients.
2. Wished to be informed of the new provider when determined.
3. Would like a report on progress at its meetings on 27 November and
July 2018 to take account of the performance of the new provider.
SCHH/17/27. Accountable Care System and STP update
The Director of Social Care Health and Housing introduced a report and
presentation that outlined details of the Accountable Care System and
Sustainable and Transformation Plan for the Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton
Item 2 /

Page 4

SCHHPage 5

24.07.17

Keynes footprint. The information made particular reference to the interests of
residents in Central Bedfordshire, the new shape of Governance for Health and
Social Care and how decisions would be made. The presentation included
reference o the five work streams of the STP and progress made in these
areas.
Members welcomed the direction of travel and raised concerns relating to the
following: Proposals to digitalising care records, moving away from nurses
undertaking patient data input. In response the Executive Member for
Social Care and Housing advised an ‘app’ had been developed and those
patients well enough could input their own data.
 Whether proposals for an integrated health and social care hub in the
Houghton Regis area where considerable housing growth was planned
would be delivered as they had not been mentioned in the report. In
response the Head of Partnerships and Performance advised a fifth hub
was probable, although it was not yet known what services might be
delivered and this was subject to services provided by the Dunstable hub.
In light of the discussion it was proposed that a workshop be arranged to
provide clarity for Members on the new pathways for the Health and Social
care service and a timetable for delivery.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee
1. Reinforces its support for the five priority areas outlined in the report.
2. Emphasises the need to ensure what is best for Central Bedfordshire
residents.
3. Emphasises the constructive use of technology in keeping records
and sharing data including the ability for patients to access their own
records with support where required.
4. Recognises the Case for Change referred to in priority 3 and seeks
information about the options that will form the basis of proposals for
hospital services in the future.
5. Would like to see a more definite time table on what is wished to be
achieved and by when.
NOTED that an Accountable Care System rewards those who are involved
in keeping people healthy and looks for continuing evidence as to how
this is to be achieve and the collective responsibility to deliver joined up,
better, coordinated care.
(Note:

The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 1.00 p.m.)
Chairman…………………………………..
Dated…………………………………..

Item 2 /

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 11 Page
1
/

Commissioning Intentions
Our plans – your views

Commissioning intentions?
Item 11 Page
2
/

• Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group is the local NHS body
responsible for health buying products and services locally.
• We work with patients, the public and partners – including local
authorities to understand what the health needs are of the
communities we serve and we plan what we need to provide to meet
patient needs.
• We call those plans “commissioning intentions”.

What are we doing?
Item 11 Page
3
/

• Every three years, we work with patients, the public, our partners
and providers to agree our plans for the next three years.
• This covers how we will manage everything from primary care,
through to the treatment people will receive in hospitals and in the
community.
• Last year, we set out our plans for 2017 – 2019, but twelve months
into a two year contract with our providers, we want to make sure
we’re on the right track and that our plans are still meeting the needs
of our communities.

What do our plans include?
Our plans include:
Item 11 Page
4
/

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Urgent and emergency care
Out of hospital care
Primary care
Children’s care
Maternity services
Mental Health / CAMHS
Personal Health Budgets

How you can help?
Item 11 Page
5
/

• We have refreshed some of our thinking to improve the services
available – and so we’d welcome your views.
• We have provided some detail in this document to show what the
refreshed services will mean for patients of all ages.
• If you would like more information, the details are provided on our
website www.bedfordshireccg.nhs.uk

Urgent and Emergency
Item 11 Page
6
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If you’re unwell, you can access out
of hours care, or book an
appointment with your doctor. Those
who are unable to get an
appointment go to A&E.

You can book an appointment
through NHS 111 to attend an
appointment at a new urgent GP
clinic at Bedford Hospital.

If you are frail and elderly, you will
often go to hospital when you’re
unwell. This can lead to lengthy
stays, which slows your recovery.

Geriatricians will work in the
community and rapid access clinics
will be opened, so that you can
access care closer to home.

Out of hospital care
Item 11 Page
7
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

You can see your GP or practice
nurse at your surgery at specific
times. If you need to see a
specialist, you will need to go to
hospital.

You can see a number of different
specialists from the hospital in new
community hubs, which are closer to
home.

You have to attend hospital for follow Using technology, you can do follow
up appointments.
up appointments on line, if it’s
clinically appropriate.

Item 11 Page
8
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If you’re having an operation, you
have to go to hospital for
assessments.

If it’s clinically safe to do so, you can
carry out pre-op assessments
online.

If you have a respiratory condition,
Some of the services you access will
you will need to go to the hospital for be available through your local
treatment.
surgery or Hub. We are carrying out
a review to bring this care closer to
home.
If your GP thinks you might have
IBS, you have to go to hospital for
tests.

You will be tested for IBS in your GP
surgery – which will speed up your
diagnosis.

Item 11 Page
9
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If you have heart failure, you will be
treated by Essex Partnership
University in Central Bedfordshire.

If you live in Central Bedfordshire,
you will continue to receive this care.
This has been extended to Bedford
Borough – where you will be able to
access services from Essex
Partnership University Trust and
have access to more specialist
nurses and consultants at outpatient
services.

If you’re a Diabetic, your GP will help New investment coming to
you to manage your condition.
Bedfordshire means that you can
access more clinics and diabetic
reviews to help you manage your
diabetes, so that you don’t become
unwell and are admitted to hospital.
Surgeries will also promote self care
and help people better manage their
own wellbeing.

Item 11Page
10
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If you’ve had a stroke, you will
rehabilitate in hospital. This could
mean a lengthy stay.

If you’ve have a stroke, you’ll access
improved rehabilitation services that
will help you to leave hospital
sooner, with social care provided by
your local authority.

If you need additional support when
you leave hospital, you may have to
stay in hospital for a longer period
than necessary – until packages of
care are available.

You will benefit from more joined up
health and social care, which means
you will be discharged from hospital
faster, with the right support and
care you need at home.

If you need rehabilitation – this
would happen in hospital.

You will be able to access
rehabilitation in the community, to
aid a faster recovery.

Primary Care
Item 11Page
11
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

You will have to book to see your
doctor during office hours,
otherwise, you will have to go to out
of hours or go to the hospital.

Through development of the
Practice clusters, you will have
access to GP appointments in the
evenings and at weekends and
using new technology you’ll be able
to book online appointments and
access online consultations.
Consultant Geriatricians and
Pharmacists will also join the team
to provide greater access to
clinicians.

Children’s care
Item 11Page
12
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If your child has complex needs or is
very unwell with something like
asthma you will need to go to the
hospital.

Your child will be seen in the
community by specialists to prevent
this and support you in settings
closer to home.

If your child has mental health or
emotional needs you will be able to
access CAHMS services in the
community or hospital setting.

If your child needs mental health or
emotional support, you will be able
to have your child seen faster by the
early intervention / schools team,
crisis and community services team.
There will also be improvements for
vulnerable children including Looked
After Children or those on the autism
spectrum.

Maternity services
Item 11Page
13
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If you are pregnant, you will access
a community midwife for regular
checks and visit the hospital when
required. You will have the
opportunity to give birth at the
hospital or at home.

If you are pregnant, you will access
a more personalised care plan,
which gives you access to a named
clinician to support you through your
pregnancy, access to perinatal and
postnatal mental health services,
access to midwives and
obstetricians and you will attend a
hub that will provide a one-stop shop
for maternity care.

Mental Health
Item 11Page
14
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

If you experience mental ill-health,
you will be able to access talking
therapies in Bedfordshire and if you
experience a mental health crisis,
you will be able to get support from
the Mental Health Street Triage, or
go to hospital to receive inpatient
care.

If you become unwell, you will
benefit from a range of new services
that provide help and support closer
to home. We are currently reviewing
mental health crisis care and are
asking people what they think about
new services including crisis cafes
and crisis sanctuaries – that could
provide support when you need it
most.

Personal Health Budget
Item 11Page
15
/

What do we get now?

What will we get?

You may receive a personal health
budget that allows you to manage
your condition. Only a small number
of people have a Personal Health
Budget.

If you have a long term condition,
Including mental ill health, you may
be given a Personal Health Budget,
this will help you to identify your
health and wellbeing goals together
with your local NHS team so that
you can manage your conditions
independently.

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Briefing
Subject: Mental Health Crisis Care review- Public engagement update
Briefing date: 18th September 2017
Overview

In 2014/15, Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group in partnership with Bedford Borough
Council and Central Bedfordshire Council commissioned East London Foundation Trust
(ELFT) to deliver mental health services in Bedfordshire. The contract was co-designed with
patients and the public to ensure people received the right care in the right place at the right
time.
The contract is currently in the third year of the seven year contract, and with the introduction
of the Five Year Forward View for mental health, which aims to create parity of esteem
between physical and mental health and our commitments to the Mental Health Crisis Care
Concordat, which aims to deliver timely and quality response to mental health crisis care,
the commissioners and ELFT commenced a review of Mental Health Crisis Care for
Bedfordshire residents.
To assist in informing changes in crisis care provision, the partnership asked service users,
carers, public and professionals for their views on how we can improve mental health crisis
care for adults living in Bedfordshire. We also wanted to test out our initial views on what
developments were needed for Bedfordshire, based on national direction and best practice,
to ensure this was in line with people’s views and needs.
The feedback will help to reshape our contract with ELFT and help commission services that
provide the right care in the right place at the right time. We will also ensure partners are
informed of the findings to assist in developing cross organisational care pathways which
have an impact on our crisis care response across Bedfordshire. We also wish to be work in
coloration with partners and our voluntary sector providers to support a variety and innovative
choices to respond to mental health crisis care.
Approach:
The approach we took was to convene a multi partnership reference group to support the
Mental Health crisis care review. This consisted of Bedford Borough, Central Bedfordshire,
Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group, Clinical Leads and East London Foundation
Trust. This group helped shape the direction and scope of the public engagement.
The questions we asked were:
 What do people need when in crisis?
 Where would people want to go when in crisis?
 How do people want to communicate when in crisis?
 How can we ensure people are safe when in crisis?
We also tested our initial thoughts on positive responses to metal health crisis care. Which
were:
• Expansion of Mental health professionals in Primary Care (GP practices)
• Expansion of Mental health professionals in Hospital (A&E)
• Continuation & expansion of Mental Health Street triage - a 999 response with
police, ambulance and mental professional in attendance).
Rachel Volpe- Interim Head of MH & LD

Item 12 /

Page 1

•
•
•
•

Crisis Cafés - a place where anyone experiencing a mental health problem diagnosed
or not, can drop in for a cup of tea and a chat and can request more formal help if
needed.
Crisis Sanctuaries - offering intensive, short-term support so individuals can manage
and resolve their crisis in a residential setting (rather than hospital).
Host Families - families where individuals can get the help and support they need for
a short period of time
Expansion of current out of hours telephone line and teams

How we engaged:
The commissioners and ELFT wanted to ensure that service users, carers and those who
had an interest in mental health crisis care had the opportunity to share their views, so a
number of channels were used to gather their feedback during July and August 2017.


Stakeholder Engagement Events
An event was held at the Rufus Centre in Central Bedfordshire on 3 July and another
at The Addison Centre in Bedford Borough on 12 July 2017. The events were
promoted by the three commissioning organisations and ELFT. There were specific
focussed user groups to ensure differing needs were captured: Older people with
mental health needs, working age adults with mental health needs, Individuals with a
learning disability and mental health needs, Individuals with Autism and mental health
needs, Individuals with drug and alcohol and mental health needs. Participants were
asked to consider the needs of individuals with housing needs, entering or leaving the
criminal justice system and language and cultural needs. The Central Bedfordshire
vent was attended by 27 stakeholders and the Bedford Borough event by 37
stakeholders.



Bespoke Service User Meetings
Bespoke meetings were hosted by ELFT’s People’s Participation Lead and Diverse
Communities Team, these were held at the Wellbeing Centre specifically for service
users who had experience of a mental health crisis.



Survey
A questionnaire covering the same topics as the engagement events was made
available in paper format and online. BCCG received 294 responses to the survey.
50.69% of the responses were residents from Centrals Bedfordshire and 41.72% were
residents from Bedford Borough.



Easy Read Survey
An easy read version of the questionnaire was available in paper format and online.
BCCG received 19 responses to the easy read survey.

Promoting the Engagement Activity:
Activity to promote the engagement included:


Promoting the events and survey via email, social media and online



Targeted tweets to organisations and groups including ELFT, BLMK Mind, Our Mind
Matters. Mental Health Football Association, Break the Stigma, Meaningful Education,
Mental Health Street Triage (MHST)

Item 12 /

Page 2



Circulating details to BCCG’s public membership, Patient Participation Groups (PPGs)
and GP surgeries.



Bedford Borough Council and Central Bedfordshire Council promoting to social work
teams, partnership boards etc.



Taking the questionnaire to engagement events, for example the Bedford Borough
Aging Well Festival and Healthwatch Central Bedfordshire supported respondents to
complete surveys at their Just Ask community engagement events.



Promotion to GPs and other health professionals via GP News and GP portal.



Healthwatch Bedford Borough worked with Hear Me Out to produce a VLOG in BSL
for the Deaf community. The short video explains the reason the survey is being
conducted and encourages Deaf people to give their views. The video was posted on
Facebook, Twitter and BCCG’s website, the VLOG can be viewed on this link
https://t.co/omk7JvwW5X



A blog was produced by a Bedfordshire resident on what mental health crisis means to
them and how the service could be improved, the blog encouraged people to take part
in the survey



One of the media releases which was picked up and published in the Times and
Citizen (see appendix xxx)



Emails sent to members of the Equality and Diversity forums for both local authorities
encouraging participation



Posters and flyers displayed at the Barley Mow public house, Bedford’s longest
established LGBT venue.

Findings:
Overarching survey results showed that:
• 75.86% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion of: expansion of Mental
health professionals in Primary Care (GP practices)
• 61.46% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion of: expansion of Mental
health professionals in Hospital (A&E)
• 67.49% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion of: Continuation &
expansion of Mental Health Street triage - a 999 response with police, ambulance and
mental professional in attendance).
• 70.73% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion of: Crisis Cafés - a
place where anyone experiencing a mental health problem diagnosed or not, can drop
in for a cup of tea and a chat and can request more formal help if needed.
• 75.98% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion Crisis Sanctuaries offering intensive, short-term support so individuals can manage and resolve their
crisis in a residential setting (rather than hospital).
• 34.98% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion of: Host Families families where individuals can get the help and support they need for a short period of
time
• 75% of participants completely agreed with the suggestion of an expansion of current
out of hours telephone line and teams.
The full report can be requested.

Item 12 /

Page 3

The public engagement events and service user groups collaborated the survey results and
key qualitative statements can be seen below:


What do you/patients need in a crisis?
o Someone to listen.
o Immediate support via telephone
o Effective & clear communication across services/information sharing/ tell my
story once.



Where would you/patients want to go in a crisis?
o Somewhere that offers peer support
o Someway peaceful/calm



How do you/ patients want to communicate when in crisis?
o 1 to 1 preferred
o Translation services need to be accessible
o By telephone



How can we ensure you/people are safe when in crisis?
o Not A&E
o Café with private place to talk
o A sanctuary

Key findings summary:
The findings suggest that our initial ideas are broadly in line with people views. The findings
show the need for variety and choice and highlight that people experiencing a mental health
crisis are all individuals with differing, individual needs. The challenge for Bedfordshire will
be how to ensure we meet the differing needs and wants for residents to ensure a responsive
mental health crisis care system.
Next steps:
The results of the survey and engagement events and groups will be shared with all those
that contributed and published online.
The reference group will meet to discuss the outcomes of the engagement work, including
the organisational views from a system, organisational and care pathway perspective. These
discussion will assist in deciding on how best to meet the needs of the initial suggested
developments for crisis care for Bedfordshire and any additional requirements the
engagement piece has highlighted.
The developments will include contractual discussions with providers, task and finish groups
with wider partners to determine changes in care pathways that can better support a system
wide approach to crisis care and discussions with partner organisations, including our
voluntary sector providers on innovative and collaborative approaches to delivering a new
approach to mental health crisis care for Bedfordshire.
Timeline:
Timescales

Action

September- October
2017
September 2017

Presentation at Bedford Borough and Central Bedfordshire
OSC and BCCG Governing Body.
Mental Health Crisis Care delivery plan completed and owned
Item 12 /

Page 4

December 2017
January-February 2018
April 2018

by the Partnership Reference group.
Contractual conversations to be completed
Publication of engagement write up
Testing of planned changes with stakeholders
Contract variations applied and agreed
Pathways adjustments, that are outside of contract variations,
to be implemented
Mobilisation of contract changes commence
Mobilisation of new projects commence

Item 12 /

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 13 Page
1
/

Social Care Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
18 September 2017

Better Care Fund Plan 2017-19
Julie Ogley
Director of Social Care, Health and Housing
Central Bedfordshire Council

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

What is the Better Care Fund?
• “The Better Care Fund is a single pooled budget to
support health and social care services to work more
closely together in local areas…”.
Item 13 Page
2
/

NHS Planning Guidance, December 2013

• Subsequent requirement for local areas to develop an
Integration and BCF Plan – setting out the plans for
integration of services by 2020.

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Achievements of 2016-17 BCF plan
•
•
•

Item 13 Page
3
/

•

•
•
•

Place based MDT (community, mental health, social care) approach in Ivel
Valley progressing. Roll out planned for other localities.
Caring Together – risk stratification across several practices in Chiltern Vale
Partnership working with EPUT - joint Associate Director post; progress
made in joint approach to access and assessment (specifically closer
alignment of IMC and reablement, new arrangement at the Luton and
Dunstable relating to discharge planning)
Work with Ambulance service leading to reduction in the number of
conveyances to hospitals for EOL patients with more calls to the PEPS
Service (Partnership for Excellence in Palliative Support)
Reduction in admissions due to injury from falls - falls prevention training in
care homes and UHFRS support to care homes
Stroke ESD service live from March 2017; M1: 19 referrals for CBC residents
with all referrals being seen within 24 hours
Successful funding bids from ETTF and OPE to support the development of
business cases for integrated health and care hubs

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

3

Challenges during 2016-17 BCF plan

Item 13 Page
4
/

• Recruiting and retaining sufficient care workers;
particularly in the domiciliary care sector.
• Information and shared records to facilitate timely
transfers of care and joint care planning.
• Increasing complexity of need, multiple morbidities
due to ageing population
• Delivering timely care in a predominantly rural area
• The broad patient flows and footprint for Central
Bedfordshire residents - working with several acute
trusts, particularly in relation to DTOC and
engagement in A&E delivery Boards where Central
Bedfordshire residents are in minority.

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

4

2017-19 Integration and Better Care Fund Plan
2017-19 guidance

Item 13 Page
5
/

2 year plan how we will achieve
integration by 2020
• Local vision with patient focus
• Alignment with STP and local
plans
• Compliance with national
conditions
• A plan of action
• Use of the iBCF
• Engagement with partners
including housing

Narrative
Plan
Vision for
health and
Social care
2020
Action Plan
with supporting
evidence

Risk
assessment
and approach

Meeting the
national
conditions
Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

National Conditions and Performance Metrics for 2017-19

Item 13 Page
6
/
Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Better Care Fund Plan 2017/19
• Builds on 2016/17 plan , continues progress towards integration
• Shared principles





Care coordinated around the individual;
Decisions made with, and as close to, the individual as possible
Care provided in the most appropriate setting; and
Funding flowing to where it is needed.

Item 13 Page
7
/

• Small increase on total pooled funds, in line with inflation
• Meets required alignment with NHS FYFV and delivery of IBCF
• Alignment with STP triple aim of better health, transformed quality
of care delivery and sustainable finances mapped across Luton,
Bedfordshire and Milton Keynes footprint.
• Area specific focus for Primary Care and Out of Hospital Services
to reflect Central Bedfordshire’s patient flows and wider footprint

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

BCF Pooled Budget

Item 13 Page
8
/

2017/18

2018/19

CCG

15.545m

15.844m

CBC (including DFG)

5.535m

6.511m

IBCF

1.810m

1.956m

Total Pooled Budget

22.895m

24.312m

• Significant proportion of the pool is tied to the current
community health services contract
• Total spend on Out of Hospital Services £10.7m and
£10.9m respectively.
Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Improved BCF (iBCF)

Item 13 Page
9
/

 New non-recurrent social care grant allocation (£1,810,048 in
17/18 and £1,956,290 in 18/19)
 To be used for:
• Stabilising the social care market
• Meeting adult social care needs
• Reducing pressures on NHS
• Meeting High Impact Change Model
 Must be pooled into BCF
 Working with CCGs and providers
 Quarterly reporting to the government

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

New National Condition: Managing Transfers of Care - high impact changes that can
support local health and care systems reduce delayed transfers of care…
Change 1 : Early Discharge Planning. In elective care, planning should begin before admission. In emergency/unscheduled
care, robust systems need to be in place to develop plans for management and discharge, and to allow an expected dates of
discharge to be set within 48 hours.

Change 2 : Systems to Monitor Patient Flow. Robust Patient flow models for health and social care, including electronic
patient flow systems, enable teams to identify and manage problems (for example, if capacity is not available to meet demand),
and to plan services around the individual.

Change 3 : Multi-Disciplinary/Multi-Agency Discharge Teams, including the voluntary and community sector.
Co-ordinated discharge planning based on joint assessment processes and protocols, and on shared and agreed responsibilities,
promotes effective discharge and good outcomes for patients
Item 13Page
10
/

Change 4 : Home First/Discharge to Access. Providing short-term care and reablement in people’s homes or using ‘stepdown’ beds to bridge the gap between hospital and home means that people no longer need wait unnecessarily for assessments
in hospital. In turn, this reduces delayed discharges and improves patient flow.

Change 5 : Seven-Day Service. Successful, joint 24/7 working improves the flow of people through the system and across
the interface between health and social care, and means that services are more responsive to people’s needs.

Change 6 : Trusted Assessors. Using trusted assessors to carry out a holistic assessment of need avoids duplication and
speeds up response times so that people can be discharged in a safe and timely way.

Change 7 : Focus on Choice. Early engagement with patients, families and carers is vital. A robust protocol, underpinned by a
fair and transparent escalation process, is essential so that people can consider their options, the voluntary sector can be a real
help to patients in considering their choices and reaching decisions about their future care.

Change 8 : Enhancing Health in Care Homes. Offering people joined-up, co-ordinated health and care services, for
example by aligning community nurse teams and GP practices with care homes, can help reduce unnecessary admissions to
hospital as well as improve hospital discharge.

Focus of 2017/19 Plans: Five Schemes
1. Prevention and early intervention
2. Delivering integrated and improved outcomes
through Out of Hospital Services
Item 13Page
11
/

3. Integrated Health and Care Hubs
4. Enhanced Care in Care Homes
5. High Impact Change Model

Schemes 1&2
1. Prevention and early intervention
• Expansion of telehealth/telecare
• Implementation of Social Prescribing, support from community and
voluntary services through an enhanced network of Village Care Schemes
• Wellbeing in Care Homes - OOMPH physical activity programme
• Falls and fracture prevention – strength and balance classes, Fracture
Liaison Service, Falls Prevention training for Extra Care Homes
Item 13Page
12
/

2.

Delivering integrated and improved outcomes through out of hospital
services
• Transformation of community health and care services
• Multidisciplinary approach, place based care, co-location teams
• Primary Care Home – risk strat, CGA, trusted assessor, shared records
• Community Bed Redesign
• Integration rehabilitation & reablement
• Develop integrated care pathways , including End of Life and Stroke

Schemes 3&4
3. Integrated Health and Care Hubs

Item 13Page
13
/

• Commission scoping and Strategic Outline Case documents for the remaining 3
Hubs
• Commission Outline Business Cases (OBCs) and thereafter Full Business Cases
(FBCs) for each of the Hubs.
• Procurement and construction of Hubs.
• Development of interim “Hub” virtual/estates solutions to enable multidisciplinary working within each locality, including co-location of MDT where
possible.
• Review plans in line with Central Beds Council Local Plan development.

4. Enhanced Care in Care Homes
• Trusted Assessor model in place to advise and support care homes in the
admission and discharge of patients to/from acute care settings
• Red bag scheme in place to ensure safe transfer of client information, medication
• Undertake medication reviews to reduce inappropriate polypharmacy
• Complex care support (such as geriatricians) available to care homes to reduce
ambulance call out , conveyance and hospital admission
• Continuation and expansion of training programme to care home staff
• Digitisation progressed in care home sector (infrastructure, wifi, SystmOne etc)
• Airedale model scoped, including single point of contact (SPOC)

Scheme 5
5. High Impact Change Model

Item 13Page
14
/

• Early discharge planning – additional social workers in post
• Systems to monitor patient flow – implementation of local tracking system
• Multi-disciplinary/multi agency discharge teams, including the voluntary and
community sector – Integrated health and social care discharge service
established providing a single assessment process. Rehabilitation and
reablement teams provide an offer of integrated intermediate care
• Home First/Discharge to Assess – agree model, commission community
• Seven Day service – trusted assessor model agreed health and social care
• Trusted Assessor –establish for care homes and intermediate care
• Focus on Choice –action plan to address key issues
• Enhancing health in care homes – previous slide

Governance Structure 2017-19

Item 13Page
15
/

BCCG Governing Body

Health and Wellbeing
Board

CBC Executive

STP Priority Delivery Groups

Central Bedfordshire
Transformation Board

Provider Alliance

Right Care
Transformation
Board

Central Bedfordshire Council

A&E Delivery
Board

Better Care Fund
Steering Group

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Hub Programme
Group

Key challenges for delivery

Item 13Page
16
/

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Non elective admissions
DTOC targets against NHSE Expectations
Definition of DTOC
Community Health Services Procurement
Information sharing and alignment of systems
Workforce
Finance

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Final Assurance Time Lines
Assurance

Item 13Page
17
/

First submission

11 September

Plan scrutiny and assurance panels

21 & 22 September

Sign off by BCF Leads Panel

25 September

Regional Moderation

26 September

Cross Regional Calibration

w/c 2 October

Approval letter issued

From 6 October

Escalation/escalation panels

Tbc

Plans approved with conditions:
Resubmission of plans for
programmes approved with conditions

31 October

Section 75 agreements in place

30 November

Central Bedfordshire Council

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Central Bedfordshire Council
SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND HOUSING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
18 September 2017

Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan
Advising Officer:

Paula Everitt, Scrutiny Policy Adviser
Paula.Everitt@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Purpose of this report
The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted Committee
work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:
1.

Consider and approve the work programme attached, subject to any
further amendments it may wish to make.

2.

Consider the Executive Forward Plan; and

3.

Consider whether it wishes to suggest any further items for the work
programme and/or establish any enquiries to assist it in reviewing
specific items.

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
1.

Throughout June and July 2016 residents were encouraged to propose
items to be considered by the Council’s overview and scrutiny
committees.

2.

In addition a workshop took place in June 2016 at which Members and
partners were invited to propose additional items and to indicate the
priorities that they would like to consider throughout 2016/17.

3.

Throughout this process Members have been encouraged to adopt
several key principles relating to ways of working that were previously
agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordination Panel, namely:



Minimising duplication
Focusing on requested items
Focusing on outcomes and the 5-year plan

Item 14 /

Page 1

4.

A long-list of items was presented to the OSC at their previous meeting
where Members agreed those items they would like to be added to
further meetings.

5.

This work programme aims to provide a balance of those items on
which the Executive would be grateful for a steer in addition to those
items that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) has proactively
requested to receive.

6.

The Committee is requested to consider the work programme and the
indicated outcomes at appendix 1 and to amend or add to it as
necessary.

Overview and Scrutiny Task Forces
7.

In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members may also
wish to consider how each item will be reviewed, i.e. by the Committee
itself (over one or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing
a Member Task Force to review an item in greater depth and report
back its findings.

Executive Forward Plan
8.

Listed below are those items relating specifically to this Committee’s
terms of reference contained in the latest version of the Executive
Forward Plan that are not presently included in the Committee’s work
programme. The full Executive Forward Plan can be viewed on the
Council’s website at the link at the end of this report:-

Item
Central Bedfordshire Empty Homes Strategy
Letting of Contract for Residential and Nursing Home
Placements
Non Key Decisions
Fees & Charges Policy 2018 – 2021
Fees and Charges 2018
Quarter 1 2017/18 Revenue Budget Monitoring
Quarter 1 2017/18 Capital Budget Monitoring
Quarter 1 2017/18 Housing Revenue Account Budget
Monitoring
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2018/19
Quarter 2 2017/18 Revenue Budget Monitoring
Quarter 2 2017/18 Capital Budget Monitoring
Draft Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Plan
2017/18 Quarter 2 Performance Report
Draft Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Plan
Draft Capital Programme 2018/19 To 2021/22

Item 14 /

Page 2

Indicative Exec
Meeting date
10 October 2017
05 December
2017
Indicative Exec
Meeting date
10 October 2017
10 October 2017
10 October 2017
10 October 2017
10 October 2017
5 December 2017
5 December 2017
5 December 2017
5 December 2017
5 December 2017
9 January 2018
9 January 2018

Draft Budget for the Housing Revenue Account (Landlord
Business Plan) 2018/19
Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury Policy
Fees and Charges, Social Care Health & Housing April
2018
Final Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Plan
Final Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2021/22
Final Budget for the Housing Revenue Account (Landlord
Business Plan) 2018/19
2017/18 Quarter 3 Performance Report

9 January 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018

Corporate Implications
9.

The work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will
contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities. Whilst there are no direct
implications arising from this report the implications of proposals will be
details in full in each report submitted to the Committee.

Conclusion and next Steps
10.

Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work
programme, subject to any further amendment/additions they may wish
to make and highlight those items within it where they may wish to
establish a Task Force to assist the Committee in its work. This will
allow officers to plan accordingly but will not preclude further items
being added during the course of the year if Members so wish and
capacity exists.

Appendix A - OSC work programme
Background Papers
Executive Forward Plan (can be viewed at any time on the Council’s website)
at the following link:http://centralbeds.moderngov.co.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=577&RD=0

Item 14 /

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A. Social Care Health and Housing Work Programme 2017/18

Meeting date

Report Title

Description

27 November 2017

Safeguarding Adults Board Annual
Report
Allocations Policy

To cnsider and comment on the Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report

27 November 2017

Item 14 /

27 November 2017
27 November 2017

Page 5

22 January 2018
19 March 2018

Stop Smoking Service
Retender of contract for residental
and nursing home places

Six month Review of the Homecare
Service, Extra Care and Children's
Care Services Contracts

The Central Bedfordshire Allocations Policy requires review and amendment in
response to new duties being introduced on the Council by the Homelessness
Reduction Act 2017. The report will include a draft reviewed policy for
comments to be provided to Executive before the policy is presented for
adoption.
To consider proposals to change the Stop Smoking Service
To consider the outcome of the procurement process and to consider the
proposals for the provision of residential and nursing home places for older
people.
To review the new contracts to be awarded on 1 October 2017 after six months
of rollout.

This page is intentionally left blank

